
 
 

PLANNING, REGULATORY AND 
LICENSING 

 
3.00 PM WEDNESDAY, 6TH NOVEMBER, 2019 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

 
Please note that this Meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the Authority’s 

Internet Site.  
  

The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes within the Authority. 
 

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members  

of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and 
sound recordings as outlined above.   

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the  

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 

on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

OPEN SESSION 

Planning Applications  -  Recommendations under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and the Planning and Compensation Act 
1991 

3. P/19/0249 - 21 High Trees, Trefechan   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

5 - 8 

Information Reports 

4. P/18/0343 Appeal Decision   

 To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

9 - 12 

5. P/19/0115 Appeal Received   

 To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

13 - 14 

Other Business 

6. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

COMPOSITION: Councillors  C Tovey (Chair)  
                    M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors:  J Amos, H Barrett, D Chaplin, 

E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, C T Jones, G Lewis, J Thomas 
and S Thomas 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 
 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

DATE WRITTEN 24th October 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Rebecca Owens 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 6th November 2019 

 
 
Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/19/0249 12th September 2019 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Retention of decking to front 
garden 

21 High Trees 
Trefechan 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2LE 
 

Mrs C Morris  
c/o Mr Anthony Collins 
21 Park Place 
Pontmorlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0DJ    

 
 
 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Councillor Barrett has requested that this application be reported to Committee to consider 
the visual impact of the development and its impact on neighbours. 
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
The application relates to a semi-detached bungalow within a residential cul-de-sac.  It is 
bound by a highway to the front and other dwellings to the sides and rear.  The profile of the 
front garden was originally terraced with three levels.  The dwelling occupies a higher level 
than the adjacent highway. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the retention of a raised decking area to the front of 
the dwelling. The decked area has a maximum depth from the front elevation of the 
dwelling of 6.7m.  At its widest point the decking is 9.1m.  Given the terraced profile of the 
front garden area, the height of the decking above the original garden level varies.  At its 
highest point it is 0.9m above the middle terrace and is 1.95m above the height of the lower 
terrace.  The northern side of the decking and front facing aspect (including the existing wall 
below) is covered with softwood boarding.  Above the decking, along the eastern (front) and 
northern sides, 1.1m high glass balustrading has been erected with timber posts and 
handrails.  A seating shelter is also located to the front of the decked area.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
There is no relevant planning history which needs to be taken into consideration when 
determining this planning application. 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation exercise was considered necessary in this instance. 
    
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(Wales) (Amendment) Order 2016, letters were sent to the adjoining dwellings. 
 
Three letters of objection were received following this publicity exercise.  The main points 
raised are summarised below: 

 The decking is an overdevelopment of the site and out of scale, it is also unsightly, 
dominates the front of the bungalow and is not in keeping with the appearance of 
other bungalows within the street. 

 The decking is overbearing on neighbouring residents. 

 Due to the height and depth of the decking it would affect the privacy of neighbouring 
bungalows. 

 It could impact on property values and the ability to sell dwellings in the area. 

 Attention has also been drawn to a planning application for decking to the front of 2 
Pantglas Road, Aberfan (Planning reference P/04/0207).  This was refused for the 
following reason: 

Page 6



“The development because of its position, style and material is completely out 
of character with the host building, 2 Pantglas Road and introduces a 
discordant visual element in the street scene”. 

 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
Local Planning Policy 
 
Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 2006 – 2021 
 

 Policy BW7: Sustainable design and place making 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): 
 

 SPG 6 – A Design Guide for Householder Development 
 
Page 14 of SPG 6 states that the position, scale, style and material finishes of a balcony or 
raised platform should sensitively integrate and not dominate the character of the dwelling. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Whilst the application site is located at the end of a cul-de-sac, given the profile of the site, 
the decking occupies an elevated position which is substantially higher than the adjacent 
highway.  As such it is a highly visible, prominent structure which dominates the front of the 
dwelling.  The height, mass and depth of the decked area combined with its proximity to the 
front boundary make it a substantial development which is an incongruous addition to the 
streetscene.  It therefore causes significant harm to the character and visual amenities of 
the area and is contrary to Policy BW7 of the LDP. 
 
Regard has also been had for the impact of the decking on the residential amenities of the 
surrounding occupants.  In this respect it is noted that the decking has been erected hard 
on the boundary with the dwelling to the south known as 20 High Trees and due to its 
height and depth, the decking allows those using it clear and quite direct views into the front 
patio doors, and to a lesser extent front window, of this property which results in an 
unacceptable loss of privacy.  It is noted that a privacy screen along the southern perimeter 
of the decking may overcome the issue of overlooking, but the additional height would have 
a further adverse visual and overbearing impact.  As currently constructed, the decking is 
not substantially higher than the existing boundary fence, therefore it does not have an 
overbearing impact on the occupants of this dwelling or result in any undesirable loss of 
light or over shadowing.   
 
With regard to the property to the north, known as 22 High Trees, it is noted that the 
decking is set in from the shared boundary line by over 2.5m and does not project above 
the height of the existing boundary fence.  As such no concerns are raised in terms of loss 
of light or overbearing impact.  The decking does however allow for direct views into the 
side windows of this dwelling but the window in the main side elevation is obscured glazed 
and the other windows serve a porch rather than a habitable room and as such the impact 
is not deemed harmful. 
 

Page 7



It is also recognised that the decking also allows for unrestricted views into the front 
gardens of the adjoining dwellings 20 and 22 High Trees and the dwellings opposite.  
However, it is noted the front gardens, to varying degrees, can be overlooked from the 
adjacent highway. As such this impact is not detrimental.  Similarly, whist the decking 
allows for elevated views towards the front windows of those dwellings opposite (11 and 12 
High Trees), these are at a distance which avoids any extensive overlooking and loss of 
privacy.  In this respect it is also noted that views are no greater than those from the 
adjacent highway. 
 
Having considered the above, the decking is found to result in an unacceptable degree of 
overlooking into the front windows of the neighbouring dwelling known as 20 High Trees 
which is impinging on the privacy of its occupants to an unacceptable degree.  The 
proposal is therefore found to conflict with Policy BW7 of the LDP. 
 
As outlined above, three letters of objection were received to the planning application.  The 
concerns raised within these have been addressed above with the exception of the impact 
of the development on property values.  This is not a material planning consideration. In 
addition, it is noted that reference was correctly made to a previous planning application 
relating to decking to the front of a dwelling which was refused planning permission.   
 
In reaching the recommendation, the requirements of section 3 and 5 of the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 have been taken into account.  The recommendation 
is in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development principle through its contribution 
towards the Welsh Minister’s well-being objective of supporting safe, cohesive and resilient 
communities. 
 
Accordingly, the following recommendation is made: 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   BE REFUSED 
 
 
 
 1. The elevated decking, by virtue of its siting to the front of the dwelling along with it’s, 

size and excessive height represents a prominent, oppressive and incongruous 
feature which significantly harms the character and visual amenities of the area.  As 
such it is contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

 
 2. The elevated decking, by virtue of its height, depth and proximity to 20 High Trees 

gives rise to an unacceptable degree of overlooking to the front patio door which 
results in a loss of privacy to the detriment of the residential amenity of its occupants.  
This is contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION 
 

DATE WRITTEN 24 November 2016 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Caroline Pulley 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 6th November 2019 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/18/0343 06.11.2018 MTCBC 
   

Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 

   

Erection of garage 1 Wern Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3NG 

Mr Martin Burvill 
1 Wern Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3NG 

 

 

TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/D/19/3235998 
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:  17th October 2019 
DECISION:    DISMISSED 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

Page 10



 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL RECEIVED  
 

DATE WRITTEN 24th October 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Caroline Pulley 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 6th November 2019 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/19/0115 09.05.2019 MTCBC 
   

Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 

   

Provision of a new access and 
driveway to front of property 

Glenbrook 
High Street 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6AD 

Mrs Ashleigh Bucknall 
Glenbrook 
High Street 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6AD 

 

 
 
TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/D/19/3237675 
DATE APPEAL RECEIVED:  10th October 2019 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 P/19/0249 - 21 High Trees, Trefechan
	4 P/18/0343 Appeal Decision
	5 P/19/0115 Appeal Received

